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MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Alcoholic Beverage Control Board  
 

DATE:  July 29, 2019 

FROM: Erika McConnell, Director 
 

RE:  Request for Reconsideration for OAH 
 Case No. 18-0628-ABC; License 4733 No 
 DBA, held by Triplets Inc. 

 
 
At the July 9, 2019, meeting, the board adopted the administrative law judge’s decision on the appeal 
of the denial of a fourth waiver request and license renewal for beverage dispensary license 4733, No 
DBA, held by Triplets Inc. The decision is attached. 
 
Under the Administrative Procedures Act AS 44.62.540, the board has the authority to order a 
reconsideration. This request to you does not constitute a formal petition of a party because I am 
your employee, but I feel compelled to bring the issues below to your attention because the board’s 
adoption of the judge’s recommended decision has significant ramifications on licenses in delegated 
status, and on staff procedures and resources. As always, my staff and I share your commitment to 
an orderly and consistent process that serves the public. 
 
I am asking the board to reconsider this decision for the following reasons: 
 
1. By adopting this decision, the board has accepted the concept of a ‘de facto’ denial implemented 
by the director without specific board action, which is not mentioned in Alaska statutes and appears 
to be contrary to the authority granted by statute. AS 04.06.080 provides that the board may delegate 
the authority to the director to temporarily grant or deny the issuance, renewal, or transfer of a 
license, but “The director’s temporary grant or denial of the issuance, renewal, or transfer of a 
license or permit is not binding on the board.” Clearly, only the board may deny the transfer of a 
license. If a delegated approval by the board is not fulfilled because the applicant has not met some 
condition of the delegation, the license remains in delegated status until the delegation is fulfilled or 
the license is brought back to the board for further action. We have seen this happen many times.  
 
But the decision you adopted provides the director the effective authority to deny an application. 
The decision says the ‘de facto’ denial is a real denial, despite no board action, that triggers the 
director’s obligation to initiate the due process notification requirements at AS 04.11.510. This gives 
the director authority that is specifically not granted to her in statute. The language of AS 04.11.510, 
as I read it, is all based on the board’s denial of an application.  
 
2. In this decision, the judge removes significant responsibility from the licensee and lays it upon 
AMCO staff. AS 04.21.030 (Responsibility of licensees, agents, and employees) states, “The licensee 
has a duty to exercise that degree of care that a reasonable person would observe to ensure that a 
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business under the person’s control is lawfully conducted. This duty of the licensee includes, but is 
not limited (1) to ensuring the compliance by agents or employees with this title and regulations 
adopted under this title…” 
 
Yet the decision as adopted makes AMCO staff responsible for monitoring the exact status of each 
application and providing communications with each applicant regarding next steps that are 
sufficient to meet individual licensees’ particular circumstances, which may include any number of 
circumstances that the staff would have no reason to know about, including the applicant’s absence 
from the state, change of address, change of plans, physical disability, and/or persistent inattention. 
AMCO does not have and never has had the resources to perform such personalized service for 
applicants, and providing such a service is not specifically required in either the statutes or the 
regulations. AMCO provides a great deal of information on its website and has worked hard to 
make applications and instructions clear and user-friendly. AMCO answers inquiries by phone and 
email and in-person. But the statute, as noted above, clearly places the burden of compliance with 
requirements on the licensee, which means that the licensee must have familiarity with the 
requirements, and the licensee must be responsible for fulfilling those requirements. A typo made by 
an AMCO staffer in an email that was to provide a notification that is not required by statute—and 
in fact is specifically NOT required in statute—cannot not excuse a licensee from  

 familiarity with the statutes and regulations (to which the licensee certified in this situation),  
 paying attention to which license is actually mailed to him, and  
 providing accurate information on all forms and applications submitted to the board. 

 
Because the decision you adopted appears to give the director authority that does not exist in the 
statute, and because it would impose new and burdensome communication requirements on the 
staff that are unsupported by statute or regulation, I ask you to reconsider your decision.   
 
If you decide not to reconsider your decision, I will calendar time at the September board meeting  
for the board to discuss and give my staff and me explicit direction on the following points, to 
ensure consistent treatment of delegated approvals in the future: 
 

 What form of notification should staff send, and how frequently, to remind a licensee in 
delegated status of matters that have not been resolved? How should staff prioritize these 
notifications in relation to review of applications? 

 How should the staff treat non-responses? 
 At what point does a license in delegated status become subject to the director’s authority to 

issue a ‘de facto’ denial and thus be sent a notice of denial under AS 04.11.510(b)(1)? 
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